
 

1 | P a g e  

 

ACCOMACK COUNTY WETLANDS MINUTES OF APRIL 27, 2023 

At a meeting of the Accomack County Wetlands Board held on the 27RD day of APRIL 2023 in the Accomack County 

Administration Building Board Chambers, Room #104, in Accomac, Virginia. 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

MEMBERS PRESENT AND ABSENT  

Wetland Board Members Present  

Mr. T. Lee Byrd, Chairman 

Mr. George Ward, Vice Chairman 

Mr. Gene Wayne Taylor 

Mr. Timothy Getek 

Mr. George H. Badger 

                                                           

Others Present:   

Ms. Chontese Ridley, Environmental Programs Permit Specialist    

Mrs. Beth Nunnally, Environmental Planner II 

Ms. Claire Gorman, Virginia Marine Resources Commission (VMRC) 

Mr. Leander Pambid, Deputy County Administrator for Building, Planning & Economic 

Development  

 

DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM    

There being a quorum, Chairman Byrd called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. 

 

2. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

 

Mr. Getek pointed out that 4.03 under New Business had been removed from the agenda. 

 

On a motion made by Mr. Getek and seconded by Mr. Ward, the Wetlands Board voted to 

approve the agenda. 

 

3. MINUTES 

A. February 23, 2023 

 

On a motion made by Mr. Badger and seconded by Mr. Getek, the Wetlands Board voted 

to approve the February 23, 2023 minutes. 

 

B. March 23, 2023 

 

On a motion made by Mr. Getek and seconded by Mr. Ward, the Wetlands Board voted to 

approve the March 23, 2023 minutes. 

 

4. NEW BUSINESS 

A. William & Brenda Hutton - VMRC# 2023- 0255 
Construction of approximately 115 linear feet of quarry stone sill on filter cloth located in Onancock, 

VA 23417, tax map#(s) 90A-2-9. 



 

2 | P a g e  

 

Ms. Nunnally, Environmental Programs, stood before the Wetlands Board and was sworn in by 

Chairman Byrd.   

 

Ms. Nunnally said this was a Living Shoreline that had been designed around existing grasses. 

There was 1,000 square feet of non-vegetated wetlands were to be filled with 35 cubic yards of 

clean upland soil, and planted converting it to vegetated wetlands.  

 

Ms. Ellen Grimes, (CRM, LLC), appeared before the Wetlands Board on behalf of the applicant 

and was sworn in by Chairman Byrd.   

 

Ms. Grimes said that she would once again like to introduce Ms. Katie Spady, who was now 

Mrs. Katie Sanders, and that she would be presenting the project too. Ms. Grimes also added 

that the applicants were in attendance and asked that the board would afford them the 

opportunity to speak if they wished to speak. 

 

Ms. Katie Sanders, (CRM, LLC), appeared before the Wetlands Board on behalf of the 

applicant and was sworn in by Chairman Byrd. 

 

Ms. Sanders went over the project description adding that there was also going to be 40 square 

feet of riprap revetment installed on the northern property line.  

 

Ms. Sanders said behind the 1,000 square feet of non-vegetated wetlands were going to be filled 

and planted with spartina alterniflora and patens converting it to vegetated wetlands. The plants 

will be monitored for three years and they were expecting an 80% survival rate.  

 

CHAIRMAN BYRD OPENED THE FLOOR TO PUBLIC COMMENT 

Mr. Byrd asked if there was anyone who wanted to comment on application 2023- 0255. 

 

No one made a request to speak. 

CHAIRMAN BYRD CLOSED THE FLOOR TO PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

Ms. Grimes said the Hutton’s were denude of vegetation in the back and that they were very 

keen on planting some shrubbery after the contractor has finished his work, (in the buffer). Ms. 

Grimes said she thought that would greatly help with their protection against the wind and salt 

spray.    

 

Ms. Grimes asked the property owners if they wanted to speak and they declined.  

 

Mr. Getek said he was curious about the revetments. He said on the north end it looked like pier 

or bulkhead was on the other property or the property line already runs through it.  

 

Mr. Getek asked if all the adjacent property owners were okay with the project. 

 

Ms. Grimes asked to confirm that all the adjacent property owners had been notified by the 

County, and that was correct. She then asked if any protest had been received and none had 

been received. 

 

Ms. Grimes said the bulkhead was in really bad shape and that it was the bulkhead of the 

adjacent property owner, and there was nothing that the Hutton’s could do about that. They best 



 

3 | P a g e  

 

they could do would be to protect their property from what that bulkhead was now causing due 

to it being in disrepair.   

 

Ms. Grimes said that was what the revetment for, to protect that corner.  

 

Ms. Grimes said she would have liked to connect to that bulkhead, but that would have called 

for the involvement of the adjacent property owner in the application.  

 

Ms. Grimes said the property line was not marked by a surveyor so they did the best they could 

with the drawings.  

 

Mr. Getek asked if there would be any outflow on the Southern end where it was pinched.  

 

Ms. Grimes said water would flow through there, and if was higher than what they expected the 

revetment would protect the erosion there.  

 

Mr. Badger said, from the drawings, it looked like the sill was channelward of low water. Ms. 

Grimes confirmed that was correct.  

 

Mr. Badger said sand fill behind the sill that was being made into mash appeared to still stop 

before the elevation was higher than high water on the drawing.   

 

Ms. Grimes said that was because they did not want to fill the existing fringe mash.  

 

Mr. Badger stated to confirm that they were not losing vegetated wetlands. Ms. Grimes said no. 

It was non-vegetated wetlands converted into vegetated wetlands. 

 

Mr. Badger asked to confirm that it was not being built up enough to get out of the Wetlands 

Board’s jurisdiction and Ms. Grimes said that was correct.   

 

Mr. Badger said he seen vegetated wetlands created 1,000, non-vegetated wetlands loss 1,000, 

but the other information broke it down to, (on page 18), 500 square feet of beach nourishment, 

area to be covered 500 square feet channelward of mean low, and 500 square feet landward of 

mean low.  

 

Ms. Grimes said page 18 was hard to figure out, but that she had since figured out how to fill it 

in.  

 

Mr. Getek asked how high the sill would be in relation to mean low and mean high tide. 

 

Mr. Badger said 3 feet above the bottom and 12 inches above high water 

 

Ms. Claire Gorman, Virginia Marine Resources Commission, appeared before the Wetlands 

Board on behalf of the applicant and was sworn in by Chairman Byrd. 

 

Mr. Getek asked Ms. Gorman if she had any concerns regarding the project.  

 

Ms. Gorman said they did not have any comments, but pointed out that the sills were in 

VMRC’s jurisdiction.  

 



 

4 | P a g e  

 

Mr. Taylor mentioned having a planting plan and Mr. Badger asked if they had it.  

 

Ms. Grimes said no, and that she would submit the plan. 

 

Mr. Badger asked Ms. Grimes what was the sprigging separation.  

 

Ms. Grimes said it could be 1 foot or 1 ½ feet depending on how fast they wanted it to fill in.  

 

Mr. Badger also wanted to point out that there was no cause for mitigation. There was no loss 

here, but a change from to non-vegetated wetlands to vegetated wetlands.  

 

On a motion made by Mr. Getek and seconded by Mr. Ward, the Wetlands Board voted to 

issue a permit (valid for (1) year for William & Brenda Hutton - VMRC# 2023- 0255 for 

the proposed construction of approximately 115 linear feet of quarry stone sill on filter 

cloth with the following conditions: 

1. Submittal of planting and 3-year monitoring plan.  

The property is located in Onancock, VA 23417, tax map#(s) 90A-2-9. 

 

B. Shooting Point Oyster Company - VMRC# 2023- 0306 
Dredging to -4 feet at mean low water the boat basin under their ownership which is approximately 65 

feet by 110 feet plus 28 feet by 30 feet located in Wachapreague, VA 23480, tax map#(s) 113A-A-209. 

 

Ms. Nunnally gave a summary of the project adding that approximately 1,042 cubic yards of dredge 

material would be pumped to the Wachapreague Town’s spoil site.  

 

Ms. Nunnally said that after making several trips to the site, she determined that the entire area, (between 

bulkheads), was in the board’s jurisdiction.  

 

Ms. Nunnally said there was approximately 7,200 square feet of non-vegetated wetlands, and that the 

application needed to be revised to reflect that number before a permit would be issued. The in lieu fee 

totaled $129,600.00.  

 

Ms. Ellen Grimes stood before the Wetlands Board on behalf of the applicant.  

 

Ms. Grimes said she took the boat basin from the low tide. Ms. Grimes said she and Ms. Nunnally went 

back out and scoped the low tide line again, and the low tide mark was different. 

 

Ms. Grimes said that her figures came to 33,650 square feet.  

 

Ms. Grimes said the reason that it did not come up to the bulkhead was because in Mr. Gallivan’s 

previous application, (Gull Point/Island House Restaurant), had already paid for a bulkhead 2 feet 

channelward of the existing structure.  

 

Ms. Grimes thought the major point to make was that this was a working waterfront that was in need of 

being revitalized to something it was 15 or 20 years ago. 

 

Ms. Grimes said that Mr. Gallivan wished to improve this by bringing his aquaculture/oyster activities to 

this particular property. Without the dredging of the slip, which had been dredged in the past historically, 

Mr. Gallivan would not be able to use it for boats coming in.  

 

Ms. Grimes said what they had was an exposed intertidal non-vegetated mudflat, that in the past, had 

been subaqueous bottom. It has been left unattended by previous owners and the sediment has built up so 

much that it is now exposed in the Wetlands Board’s jurisdiction.  



 

5 | P a g e  

 

 

Ms. Grimes said it would be a trade of environments. They would be taking mudflat, which has its own 

indigenous habitants, down to a benthic environment that will revitalize itself to an area that also has its 

own indigenous habitants. 

 

Ms. Grimes added that Mr. Gallivan grows oysters and that he would be putting them back into the 

population. Maybe not in that basin, but on the Seaside, and that was a form of mitigation for the loss 

during mitigation. Mr. Gallivan would also be moving the current oyster population prior to dredging. 

 

Ms. Grimes requested that there be no compensation required for the dredging, because at that cost, it 

ran the risk of Mr. Gallivan doing nothing with or for the property.  

 

Ms. Grimes asked again for the in lieu fee to be waived.  

 

Mr. Byrd, asked to confirm, that Ms. Grimes was asking for the $129,600.00 fee to be waived. Ms. 

Grimes said that was correct.  

 

Mr. Thomas Gallivan appeared before the Wetlands Board and was sworn in by Chairman Byrd.  

 

Mr. Gallivan said when he purchased the property the $18.00 fee was not in place, and the fee would be 

more than what he paid for the property knowing that it needed significant repair to the docks. 

 

Mr. Gallivan reiterated what Ms. Grimes adding that even though changing the environment it would be 

similar, just lower in the tidal zone. Similar species would be in place, there was no vegetation, and they 

would move the oysters. 

 

Mr. Gallivan said he grows more clams than oysters and that is what he was hoping to use this space for.  

 

Mr. Gallivan said Accomack County in its Comprehensive Plan mentions numerous times its support for 

aquaculture. Accomack County from a nursey and hatchery standpoint, to his knowledge, did not have 

much. 

 

Mr. Gallivan said at the fee level for an operation like his, first generation family business, they could 

not do it.  

 

Mr. Gallivan said they would gladly do some other type of remediation.  

 

Mr. Byrd said was what he would like to hear.  

 

Mr. Gallivan said they could plant some shells somewhere or establish a reef. 

 

Mr. Gallivan said he thought this [project] would be a positive thing for the County being part of its 

vision was to have aquaculture.   

 

Mr. Byrd told Mr. Gallivan he was hoping for more comment on what he was going to do to compensate 

for the $129, 600.00. 

 

Mr. Byrd said he was also not extremely clear on the spoils, but no matter what, this [project] was going 

to be good for the County and the Town of Wachapreague.  

 

Mr. Gallivan said this was his first time going through/doing this and he was not sure what to offer up. 

 

 

CHAIRMAN BYRD OPENED THE FLOOR TO PUBLIC COMMENT 

Mr. Byrd asked if there was anyone who wanted to comment on application 2023- 0306. 



 

6 | P a g e  

 

 

No one made a request to speak. 

CHAIRMAN BYRD CLOSED THE FLOOR TO PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

Mr. Byrd asked Ms. Gorman if she had any comments.  

 

Ms. Gorman said she had no comments, but was happy to answer any questions that the Board had.  

 

Mr. Getek asked Ms. Gorman if she had any experience on what other counties had done in regards to 

this type of situation. Was there any type of remediation or other options she could relay to them that 

would help?   

 

Ms. Gorman said the in lieu fee for non-vegetated wetlands was up to the Board’s discretion on how they 

wanted to apply it on a case by case basis. The important part is when making decisions, regarding 

whether or not to enforce the fee, is that is it consistent and equitable each time moving forward.  

 

Ms. Gorman said some counties did have dredge specific policies when it came to non-vegetated 

wetlands and their in lieu fee. Ms. Gorman said she was going to read a passage from their, (VMRC’s), 

Mitigation Compensation Policy: 

 

Non-Vegetated Wetlands should be treated on an equal basis with vegetated wetlands in regards to 

compensation mitigation unless the specific information indicates that one is more valuable than 

the other.  
 

Mr. Byrd, as well as Mr. Getek, asked Mr. Gorman if she was able to give them an example for an area 

close by that was similar.  

 

Ms. Gorman said no, not in her jurisdiction, but that Virginia Beach would sometimes charge 50% of 

their in lieu fee for certain dredge projects. She noted again that most boards approach these projects on 

a case by case basis, because each site is different and unique. 

 

Mr. Byrd and Mr. Getek thanked Ms. Gorman for her insight.   

 

Mr. Taylor asked if it was a manmade harbor. That answer was yes which meant it was not in VMRC’s 

jurisdiction.  

 

Mr. Taylor also pointed out that if it had been maintained it would not be before the board.  

 

Mr. Byrd said they needed to consider this very thoroughly. 

 

Mr. Getek asked to confirm, that the basin was being dredged to bring in boats that would be handling 

clams and oysters. The basin was not going to be used for putting in clams and oysters. 

 

Mr. Gallivan said they actually would. They just received their permit for putting in floating aquaculture 

gear.   

 

Mr. Gallivan asked if the board would consider having special considerations for maintaining working 

waterfronts. There were not many, but they generate revenue and create a lot of jobs.   

  

Mr. Getek asked Ms. Gorman, with this being manmade, would VMRC be okay with whatever decision 

the board made.  

 

Ms. Gorman said she could not answer that question, but in cases where VMRC was the default board, 

they did not/do not charge an in lieu fee for non-vegetated wetlands impacts given a clear justification 

for encroachment.  



 

7 | P a g e  

 

Ms. Nunnally said what made this project different was that it going to be confined by the bulkhead, it is 

an area that had been dredged before, and it was not a loss of habitat just a change of habitat.  

 

Ms. Grimes spoke on public benefit versus detriment and said that Mr. Gallivan made a good point for 

public benefit. Not just for Wachapreague, but for the watermen industry as well.  

 

Mr. Ward asked how much had already been paid for. 

 

Mr. Gallivan said it was $4,000.00 - $5,000.00, but he could not remember.  

 

Mr. Ward said the area was manmade, it was commercial, and at one time bringing money into not only 

Wachapreague, but the whole Shore.  

 

Mr. Ward said he thought the project should be approved, and approved without the $18.00 [per square 

feet] fee.   

 

Mr. Getek asked if there were any concerns from the adjacent property owners on the project. The 

answer was no. 

 

Mr. Taylor said the keyword that separates this from other projects was the word manmade. The key 

thing that differentiates this projects from other projects that would be coming their way, is that 

something is not already disturbed and not manmade.  

 

Mr. Ward said one of the main reason this had silted in was because there had been no movement. Boats 

coming in an out would not stop the silting, but it would slow it down.  

 

Mr. Badger said they needed to determine if the project was a good project to begin with and then 

mitigation or not mitigation.  

 

Mr. Badger said in his personal opinion, it was a good project for the community. 

 

Mr. Badger pointed out they needed revised drawings, because what they had was not correct.  

 

Ms. Grimes agreed. 

 

Mr. Badger then read Virginia code section: §28.2-1303.B1into the record: 

  

The anticipated public and private benefit of the proposed activity exceeds its anticipated public 

and private detriment. 

Mr. Byrd said they were going to take this on a case by case basis.  

Ms. Nunnally proposed, due to the precedent this was going to create, creating a checklist or a criteria 

list for this type of situation.  

Mr. Byrd felt that would help tremendously.  

On a motion made by Mr. Ward and seconded by Mr. Badger, the Wetlands Board voted to issue 

a permit (valid for (1) year for Shooting Point Oyster Company - VMRC# 2023- 0306 for the 

proposed Dredging to -4 feet at mean low water the boat basin under their ownership which is 

approximately 65 feet by 110 feet plus 28 feet by 30 feet with the following conditions: 

1. Submit new drawings 

2. Mitigation fee waived  

 The property is located in Wachapreague, VA 23480, tax map#(s) 113A-A-209. 



 

8 | P a g e  

 

 
 

 

6. OTHER BUSINESS 

A. Chesapeake Bay Foundation – VMRC# 2021-1080 Extension Request 

Extension of the existing revetment 46 feet from the west and 42 feet from the east with a 20 foot gap in 

the middle, located on Tangier Island, VA 23440, tax map#(s) 62-A-1.  

 

Due to contractor issues. The contractor was unable to complete the project before the 

expiration, but will be able to start construction during the summer. 

 

Ms. Nunnally said she had no reason to dispute the extension.  

 

Ms. Ridley said the applicant came to the June 2022 meeting to request an extension and this 

was their second request.  

 

The applicant requested a one year extension.  

 

Mr. Badger said that after so many extensions the area was going to change, and contactor or 

not, sites would need to be re-evaluated.  

 

On a motion made by Mr. Getek and seconded by Mr. Badger, the Wetlands Board voted 

extend the permit for 1 year from the initial permit date for Chesapeake Bay Foundation – 

VMRC# 2021-1080, for the proposed extension of the existing revetment 46 feet from the 

west and 42 feet from the east with a 20 foot gap in the middle, located on Tangier Island, 

VA 23440, tax map#(s) 62-A-1. 

 

7. NEXT MEETING  
The next Wetlands Board meeting is scheduled for Thursday, May 25, 2023 at 10:00 a.m. in the Accomack 

County Board Chambers, Room 104, in Accomac, VA. 

 

8. ADJOURNMENT 

On a motion made by Mr. Getek and seconded by Mr. Ward, the Wetlands Board voted to 

adjourn the meeting. 
 

The meeting was adjourned at 10:22 a.m. 

_________________________________________  

T. Lee Byrd, Chairman 
 

 __________________________________________  

Chontese Ridley, Environmental Permit Specialist 

YEA NAY OBSTAINED

Mr. George Badger

Wetlands Board Members

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Shooting Point Oyster Company - VMRC# 2023- 0306

Mr. T. Lee Byrd - Chair

Mr. George Ward - Vice Chair

Mr. Gene Taylor

Mr. Timothy Getek


